


 This is the reason why I emailed previously to inform the council that it is
available if they wish to see it but unfortunately, they didn't and I believe this to be a
failing on the Councils side.
 
As I have stated about communication before, if I had been contacted by the council and a
concern was the size, I could have looked at a compromise on size to ensure everyone is
satisfied with the final result
 
Regards,

 

From: DDC Complaints <DDCComplaints@DOVER.GOV.UK>
Sent: 12 January 2024 16:51
To: 
Subject: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20

 
Dear 

We are writing to acknowledge receipt of your complaint dated 12/01/2024 16:46and
advise that this is being dealt with as a Complaint. We will always aim to provide a
written response from the relevant department within 10 working days. However,
very occasionally we may need more time to answer your enquiry in full and if this is
the case, we will contact you to advise the new date that we are intending to respond
to your complaint. Any extension will be a no more than an additional 10 working
days.

If, on receiving our response to your complaint, you remain dissatisfied, please email
complaints@dover.gov.uk or write to the Council - for the attention of Sue Carr,
Corporate Services Officer at the address below – quoting your complaint reference
number and setting out your reasons why you are dissatisfied with the response.
Your complaint can then be reviewed at Stage 2 of the Council’s complaints
procedure. Please note that we will not escalate a complaint from Stage 1 to Stage 2
until the response to the Stage 1 complaint has been provided to you.

Kind Regards

Corporate Services
Dover District Council
Council Offices
White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
Dover CT16 3PJ



This e-mail, including any attachments, is intended for the above addressee(s) only and may contain marked material up to
RESTRICTED and should be handled accordingly.

If you are not the intended recipient (or authorised to receive it on behalf of the addressee), please notify the sender immediately by
return e-mail and then delete the message without copying it or disclosing it to anyone.

Precautions have been taken to ensure that this is a virus-free message but recipients are responsible for carrying out their own
checks. This Council accepts no responsibility for loss or damage to any hardware, software or data resulting from this e-mail.

All GCSx (Government Connects Secure Extranet) traffic may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant
legislation.

Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR. Our privacy notice at www.dover.gov.uk/privacy explains how we use and
share personal information and protect your privacy and rights.



From:
To: DDC Development Management; 
Cc: ; DDC Complaints
Subject: RE: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20
Date: 16 January 2024 10:05:00

All
 
As far as I am concerned this is not a service complaint – it is raising issues with regards to
the content of the application as submitted, which should be responded to by the case
officer as part of the normal planning process where there is a disgruntled applicant.  I
have already notified the complaints team as such
 

 – perhaps you could contact  and advise him accordingly
 
Thanks
 

 

   

Planning Enforcement Manager
Planning and Development
Dover District Council
Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Whitfield, Dover
CT16 3PJ 
 

Tel: 
Email: 
Web: http://dover.gov.uk 
 

P Please consider the Environment before printing this email
 
Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR, your
attention is drawn to our Corporate Privacy Notice at
https://www.dover.gov.uk/privacy. This explains how we will use
and share your personal information and protect your privacy
and rights.

 
 
From: DDC Development Management <DevelopmentManagement@DOVER.GOV.UK> 
Sent: Monday, January 15, 2024 7:42 AM
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: FW: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20

 
 
 

Planning Support and Land Charges
Manager









From:
To:
Cc: ; DDC Complaints
Subject: FW: Dover District Council- Prior approval refused
Date: 16 January 2024 10:07:00
Attachments: image001.jpg

Hi 
 
More correspondence on this matter.  Please can you contact  accordingly.
 

 

   

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
Sent: Friday, January 12, 2024 1:49 PM
To: 
Cc: DDC Complaints <DDCComplaints@DOVER.GOV.UK>; 

Subject: FW: Dover District Council- Prior approval refused

 
Hi 
 
See email below
 

 

Planning Support and Land Charges
Manager
Development Management
Dover District Council





Can you clarify on the above as this statement contradicts itself? It states the size
would be excessive, then it states it would limit availability of storage space and
machinery manoeuvrability within the building? I would like to understand the
rationale on this statement?

There is no requirement to submit elevation drawings for a barn, that is the reason
why I hadn't submitted them

Under permitted development, it allows buildings of up to 1000m2, the barn in this
application measures 250m2. 

"In addition, the materials proposed to be used are considered to be inappropriate and
somewhat extravagant for its intended use, for purposes proposed in connection with
agricultural activities identified".

If a site visit had been made this could have been discussed, looking at buildings in
the locality of this site, they match a number of buildings or parts of their structure,
which is why they were proposed.

"Given the above there is insufficient evidence to satisfy officers that the building is
reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture within the unit, it is a binary test
whereby the proposal does not qualify for the proceeding permitted development
rights. As such it is unnecessary to undertake the review of the proposal against A.1 (a-
k) and A.2. Prior approval is therefore refused and planning permission is required".

Surely for someone to make this Bold conclusion there would have been some
communication between the council and myself, request for information to
substantiate this decision and visual evidence to confirm the officers satisfaction?
Can you please explain why further enquiries weren't made and a site visit wasn't
undertaken?

 
Just to repeat the questions I would like answers to, please see below bullet points;
 

Why has there been no requests for additional information to verify what I have
submitted within my application? I can supply all that is required and stated that in a
previous email! If a copy of my business plan was requested, it would mirror a lot of
the information already stated in the application, it also covers a lot more of the
activities in their entirety

Why has there not been a site visit? If an officer attended the site, they would
clearly see what I have stated is factual on the operation of the farm. How can you
make an assessment and give a decision when there hasn't been a site visit and no
one has witnessed what activities are being undertaken on site?

I am genuinely undertaking agricultural activities on this site and this barn IS



reasonably necessary for that purpose, how, with all of the above taken into
account, can a decision be made and go against government legislation without
covering all of the facts as far as reasonably practicable? As I have already stated, No
contact or request has been made for additional information which would support
my activities!

, this would
have been available if I had been contacted by the council and if it had been
requested! Why wasn't this requested?

Why has the application 23/01113 been used to assist in this decision?
 
I feel this decision has been made by way of presumptions and possibly speculation into
the future use of the building and the temporary application has also been mentioned 
 
I would hope for a reply to these questions in a timely manner of within 7 days. As a
decision has already been made, I would hope these questions would be easy to answer as
there should be compiled notes to refer back to. 
 
Regards,

 
 
 
 

From: DevelopmentManagement@DOVER.GOV.UK
<DevelopmentManagement@DOVER.GOV.UK>
Sent: 11 January 2024 15:55
To: 
Subject: Dover District Council- Prior approval refused

 
Please read the important information attached from Dover District Council

----------------------------------------------------------------------
This e-mail, including any attachments, is intended for the above addressee(s) only and
may contain marked material up to RESTRICTED and should be handled accordingly.
If you are not the intended recipient (or authorised to receive it on behalf of the addressee),
please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and then delete the message without
copying it or disclosing it to anyone.



Precautions have been taken to ensure that this is a virus-free message but recipients are
responsible for carrying out their own checks. This Council accepts no responsibility for
loss or damage to any hardware, software or data resulting from this e-mail.
By communication with this Council by e-mail, you consent to such correspondence being
monitored or read by any other officer of the Council.
All GCSx (Government Connects Secure Extranet) traffic may be subject to recording
and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.
Dover District Council is a data controller under GDPR.  Our privacy notice at
www.dover.gov.uk/privacy explains how we use and share personal information and
protect your privacy and rights.

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
Cc: DDC Complaints
Subject: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20 - planning reference - DOV/23/01430
Date: 24 January 2024 12:51:00

Dear 
 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – as amended
Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development England Order 2015
– as amended
Stage 1 Complaint – Prior Approval Application reference no : DOV/23/01430 –
Dolittle Farm
 
I have been asked to respond to your Stage 1 complaint pursuant to your emails to the
Complaints team and others.  I note the matters you refer to are primarily in respect of
application process and procedure relating particularly to consideration and
determination of your Prior Approval application, reference no : DOV/23/01430.
 
I note the points you have made in your correspondence and those questions you have
specifically asked.  I have provided commentary on process and procedure which I trust
will provide you with a response to your questions.
 
In compiling a report for consideration an officer will always include and refer to matters
of fact.  In this case, with regards to your query over reference to your planning
application on adjacent land, in the officers report, it was pertinent to make factual
mention of it.  This is normal reporting procedure.

You refer to the specifics of your prior approval application. No indication of land size
which has been claimed to form part of the  agricultural “unit” elsewhere had been
supplied.   Officers made an assumption that the entirety of the agricultural unit did
exceed 5ha, without any evidence, even so – this was assumption. The size of the
building amounted to a 250 sqm footprint and is considered excessive for the
agricultural activities described.  The low eaves height indicated in your application
would not allow farm machinery of any scale to operate within it and any storage of a
significant amount of straw/feed etc to be accessed.  The Council was not satisfied, as
the decision notice indicates, that the development was permitted by the Order.  In
which case no further details of design and siting were sought. In determining the
application, due regard was had to references made to the scale and scope of
agricultural activities indicated.

The suitability of materials proposed in the finish of the agricultural building was a
consideration with regard to it being development permitted by the Order.  Agricultural
buildings are usually utilitarian in their appearance and cladding/roofing materials used
are usually simple and more appropriate to the type of use a building will be put to.   Ie
in such cases perhaps box profile sheet roofing and steel cladding. 

As said, the Council was not satisfied that the development proposed was reasonably
necessary for the purposes of agriculture being carried out within the “unit”. It was not
necessary to discuss the proposals further with you as the submission contained
sufficient information to describe the proposals. The Council determines such
applications on the basis of their content.

The Councils decision was made in cognisence of the details put forward in the
application. For the purposes of prior approval applications, the assumption is that in
submitting a prior approval application the applicant has satisfied themselves firstly that
their development is development permitted by the Order.  You mention you were “ not











I am aware of my options now that a decision has been made but before I decide on what to do
next it would be helpful if you can clarify upon the following points.

 

I was not surprised with the decision as I felt that my application for temporary residence in
caravans on the site next to the agricultural land would somehow be connected to this separate
application.  The comments made by the planning officer in the report compounded my view of
this because it was within the assessment section of the report.  Surely by mentioning within the
assessment section of the report it has been considered and therefore has some relevance to the
overall decision.  Could you please explain why my other application is raised in the assessment
section of the report and why is it necessary to say that the development was unlawful and that
there is no certainty over the permanence of the development.

 

I am still confused as to why on one hand in the report it states that the building is
excessive and then on the other hand it is too small to store machinery and other
agricultural items described in the application. Surely the fact that I have this necessary
machinery, feed, hay etc it is necessary for the purposes of agriculture? Not all farm
buildings/barns are the same size, they are often suited to accommodate the size of
machinery and storage requirements, as this one was planned to.

 

In regard to further information that was offered but not requested, I did not want certain
information in the public domain such as my business plan or my additional tenancy
agreement.  In order to make a well-informed decision it would have been nice if the officer
had asked to see sight of it rather than what appears to be presumptions, these
documents could have been emailed to the officer straight away.  I thought that planning
departments were supposed to work with applicants and approach planning proposals in a
positive way, is that not the case?
 
With regards to the information I submitted, I read through similar prior notification
applications in the area and surrounding, all of these had minimal information when
compared to the information I had supplied and had been agreed.

 

I understand a decision was made on the facts in front of the officer but is a site visit not a
fundamental part of the decision process?  How can an officer be sure their decision is
correct without carrying out a visit to the farm?  If they did then they would see that I am
having to store all my feed in the open which is attracting rodents which is causing me a
financial loss.  Surely this could have been arranged within the 28 days, I am on the other
end of a phone or email and the farm is only 5 minutes from the Council's offices. 

 

You have said that I can apply for a Certificate of Lawfulness, would that not be the exact same
thing, in both types of applications the Council are considering whether what I have put in the
application is permitted development or not.



 

I am of course very disappointed with the outcome, the barn is a fundamental part of my
business which will benefit the rural economy, something I thought the Council were
supposed to support?

 

It would be helpful if you could explain why the officer considered the barn to be excessive
and not needed for agriculture because it is not clear in the report.  What am I supposed to
do leave all that stuff in the open? Also, if I had proposed to build the barn with a covering
of corrugated sheet metal, the fact it is located in a National Landscape and other
buildings in the locality have either timber cladding or the old and potential asbestos fibre
boards, would have been rejected. The external materials I chose were fitting to the
location and surrounding buildings

 

Thank you for your time
 

From: 
Sent: 24 January 2024 12:51
To: 
Cc: DDC Complaints <DDCComplaints@DOVER.GOV.UK>
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
surprised by this (the Councils sic) decision”. It should also be borne in mind that there
is a limited time frame within which such applications have to be determined and this
alone can dictate how much time can be given to questioning the content of such
applications.  In which case, with the benefit of hindsight, it could have been prudent to
seek advice from the Council before submission, on its views.  The Council does
operate a pre-application advice service, which is beneficial for informing submissions
to the Council : Pre-application Advice (dover.gov.uk)

Alternately, there is also a route to determine whether a development is in itself
development permitted by the Order, through the Certificate of lawfulness process :
Application Forms (dover.gov.uk) , which would have been open to you.

In dealing with applications, as a general rule, there is no onus on the Council to seek
further information (such as evidence of business accounts) where it is satisfied they
have sufficient detail in front of them to determine an application.  Equally, there was no
requirement for a site visit to be carried out, as the application was considered and
determined on matters of fact in its content.  As it turned, the Council was not satisfied
that the proposed building was reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture, it
was not development permitted by the Order, in which case, as set out, there was no
need to consider the proposal further, pursuant to the provisions of the Order.

In moving forward, it seems to me there are options open to you.  You could submit an
application for a certificate of lawfulness if you consider the development to be
development permitted by the Order.  This would need to be accompanied by sufficient
evidence.  You can seek advice as mentioned above, from the Council on content and
quality of a prior approval application (or a planning application).  You could apply to the
Council for planning permission for an agricultural building - in the normal manner
LINK.  Alternately you can appeal the Councils decision on the prior approval
application to the Planning Inspectorate, pursuant to Section 78(1) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 







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





Thanks for your time

From:  >
Sent: 02 February 2024 11:22
To: 
Subject: RE: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20 - planning reference - DOV/23/01430
 
Dear 
 
Thankyou for your email
 
The Notices sent to you set out why permission and prior approval were both refused.  The
reasons are elaborated on in the officers report.  Matters you have raised have been addressed
as far as they can be at this point and as said, I cannot add anything further.    I agree, the
backwards and forwards of emails is not really moving matters on for you. If you intend
submitting any further application, then I really do suggest – as I have already mentioned, that
you seek pre-application advice from the Council prior to any submission as this would help
inform your submission.  You can use this link  : Pre-application Advice (dover.gov.uk)
 
Yours sincerely
 

 
 
 

   

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
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 7:49 AM
To: 







to do next it would be helpful if you can clarify upon the following points.
 
I was not surprised with the decision as I felt that my application for temporary residence
in caravans on the site next to the agricultural land would somehow be connected to this
separate application.  The comments made by the planning officer in the report
compounded my view of this because it was within the assessment section of the report. 
Surely by mentioning within the assessment section of the report it has been considered
and therefore has some relevance to the overall decision.  Could you please explain why
my other application is raised in the assessment section of the report and why is it
necessary to say that the development was unlawful and that there is no certainty over the
permanence of the development.
 
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
 
You have said that I can apply for a Certificate of Lawfulness, would that not be the exact
same thing, in both types of applications the Council are considering whether what I have
put in the application is permitted development or not.
 
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
Sent: 24 January 2024 12:51
To: 
Cc: DDC Complaints <DDCComplaints@DOVER.GOV.UK>
Subject: Dover District Council Complaint - C2024-20 - planning reference - DOV/23/01430

 
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
You refer to the specifics of your prior approval application. No indication of land
size which has been claimed to form part of the  agricultural “unit” elsewhere had
been supplied.   Officers made an assumption that the entirety of the agricultural
unit did exceed 5ha, without any evidence, even so – this was assumption. The
size of the building amounted to a 250 sqm footprint and is considered excessive
for the agricultural activities described.  The low eaves height indicated in your
application would not allow farm machinery of any scale to operate within it and
any storage of a significant amount of straw/feed etc to be accessed.  The Council
was not satisfied, as the decision notice indicates, that the development was
permitted by the Order.  In which case no further details of design and siting were
sought. In determining the application, due regard was had to references made to
the scale and scope of agricultural activities indicated.
The suitability of materials proposed in the finish of the agricultural building was a



consideration with regard to it being development permitted by the Order. 
Agricultural buildings are usually utilitarian in their appearance and
cladding/roofing materials used are usually simple and more appropriate to the
type of use a building will be put to.   Ie in such cases perhaps box profile sheet
roofing and steel cladding. 
As said, the Council was not satisfied that the development proposed was
reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture being carried out within the
“unit”. It was not necessary to discuss the proposals further with you as the
submission contained sufficient information to describe the proposals. The Council
determines such applications on the basis of their content.
The Councils decision was made in cognisence of the details put forward in the
application. For the purposes of prior approval applications, the assumption is that
in submitting a prior approval application the applicant has satisfied themselves
firstly that their development is development permitted by the Order.  You mention
you were “ not surprised by this (the Councils sic) decision”. It should also be
borne in mind that there is a limited time frame within which such applications
have to be determined and this alone can dictate how much time can be given to
questioning the content of such applications.  In which case, with the benefit of
hindsight, it could have been prudent to seek advice from the Council before
submission, on its views.  The Council does operate a pre-application advice
service, which is beneficial for informing submissions to the Council : Pre-
application Advice (dover.gov.uk)
Alternately, there is also a route to determine whether a development is in itself
development permitted by the Order, through the Certificate of lawfulness process
: Application Forms (dover.gov.uk) , which would have been open to you.
In dealing with applications, as a general rule, there is no onus on the Council to
seek further information (such as evidence of business accounts) where it is
satisfied they have sufficient detail in front of them to determine an application. 
Equally, there was no requirement for a site visit to be carried out, as the
application was considered and determined on matters of fact in its content.  As it
turned, the Council was not satisfied that the proposed building was reasonably
necessary for the purposes of agriculture, it was not development permitted by the
Order, in which case, as set out, there was no need to consider the proposal
further, pursuant to the provisions of the Order.
In moving forward, it seems to me there are options open to you.  You could
submit an application for a certificate of lawfulness if you consider the
development to be development permitted by the Order.  This would need to be
accompanied by sufficient evidence.  You can seek advice as mentioned above,
from the Council on content and quality of a prior approval application (or a
planning application).  You could apply to the Council for planning permission for
an agricultural building - in the normal manner LINK.  Alternately you can appeal
the Councils decision on the prior approval application to the Planning
Inspectorate, pursuant to Section 78(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended). 
In conclusion, whilst I appreciate the points you have raised, I do not see that the
Councils approach in dealing with this application was not in accordance with its
statutory duty to process and determine the application it had in front of it.  I trust
my response has answered the questions you have raised.  I have copied in the
Councils complaints team so they are aware of my response to you
Yours sincerely
 
 





have been discussed, looking at buildings in the locality of this site, they match a number
of buildings or parts of their structure, which is why they were proposed.Given the above
there is insufficient evidence to satisfy officers that the building is reasonably necessary for
the purposes of agriculture within the unit, it is a binary test whereby the proposal does
not qualify for the proceeding permitted development rights. As such it is unnecessary to
undertake the review of the proposal against A.1 (a-k) and A.2. Prior approval is therefore
refused and planning permission is required.• Surely for someone to make this Bold
conclusion there would have been some communication between the council and myself,
request for information to substantiate this decision and visual evidence to confirm the
officers satisfaction? Can you please explain why further enquiries weren't made and a site
visit wasn't undertaken?
How have you been affected by this? I feel this decision has been made by way of
presumptions and possibly speculation into the future use of the building and the
temporary application has also been mentioned
Complainant Address: 
On what date were you first aware of this matter? 2024-01-12
What would you like the Council to do to put things right? Just to repeat the questions I
would like answers to, please see below bullet points;• Why has there been no requests
for additional information to verify what I have submitted within my application? I can
supply all that is required and stated that in a previous email! If a copy of my business plan
was requested, it would mirror a lot of the information already stated in the application, it
also covers a lot more of the activities in their entirety• Why has there not been a site
visit? If an officer attended the site, they would clearly see what I have stated is factual on
the operation of the farm. How can you make an assessment and give a decision when
there hasn't been a site visit and no one has witnessed what activities are being
undertaken on site?• I am genuinely undertaking agricultural activities on this site and this
barn IS reasonably necessary for that purpose, how, with all of the above taken into
account, can a decision be made and go against government legislation without covering
all of the facts as far as reasonably practicable? As I have already stated, No contact or
request has been made for additional information which would support my activities!• 

this would have been available if I had
been contacted by the council and if it had been requested! Why wasn't this requested?•
Why has the application 23/01113 been used to assist in this decision?
Complaint ID: C2024-20
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